ANALYSIS OF PREFERENCE CRITERIA OF POCARI SWEAT ADVERTISEMENT WITH EYE-TRACKING APPROACH



INTERNATIONAL PROGRAM DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERING UNIVERSITAS ISLAM INDONESIA

YOGYAKARTA

2020

AUTHENTICITY STATEMENT

In the name of Allah, I hereby certify that this research is based on my own work except for citations and summaries in which of those is explicit knowledge. If in the future, this statement is proved not right and violates the legal regulation of papers and intellectual property rights, I agree Universitas Islam Indonesia revoke my bachelor certificate.



ii

Yogyakarta, 24 September 2020

Dean Tirkaamiana

BFAFF949198542

THESIS APPROVAL OF SUPERVISOR

ANALYSIS OF PREFERENCE CRITERIA OF POCARI SWEAT ADVERTISEMENT WITH EYE-TRACKING APPROACH

THESIS



(Ir. Hatomo Soewardi, M.Sc., Ph.D.)

THESIS APPROVAL OF EXAMINATION COMMITTEE

ANALYSIS OF PREFERENCE CRITERIA OF POCARI SWEAT ADVERTISEMENT WITH EYE-TRACKING APPROACH

By Name : Dean Tirkaamiana Student No. : 16522249

Had been defended in front of Examination Committee in Partial Fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Sarjana Teknik Industrial Engineering Department Faculty



DEDICATION PAGE

This undergraduate thesis which spent my lot of effort is dedicated to my family, Mama, Papa, and Teteh. Without my family, I am nothing. All my friends in International Program Industrial Engineering 2016, who accompany me since I didn't have any idea in university life. Also, my great friend and partner in DSK&E 2016.



ΜΟΤΤΟ

"Success is the sum of small efforts - repeated day in and day out" - Robert Collier



PREFACE



Assalamu'alaikum Warrahmatullahi Wabarakatuh,

Alhamdu lillahi rabbil 'alamin, all praise to Allah S.W.T. Because without His blessing, I cannot finished my undergraduate thesis with title **ANALYSIS OF PREFERENCE ADVERTISEMENT OF PRODUCT AS MODEL CRITERIA IN INSTAGRAM WITH EYE-TRACKING.** Also, support and motivation has a role in finishing my thesis. This support and motivation from:

- 1. Prof. Dr. Ir. Hari Purnomo, M.T. as Dean of Industrial Technology Faculty, UII.
- 2. M. Ridwan Andi Purnomo, S.T., M.Sc., Ph.D as Head of Department of Industrial Engineering, Faculty of Industrial Technology UII.
- 3. Dr. Taufiq Immawan, S.T., M.M., as Head of Undergraduate Program Department of Industrial Engineering, Faculty of Industrial Technology UII.
- 4. Ira promasanti, Head of Industrial Engineering International Program
- 5. Author's supervisor, Ir. Hartomo Soewardi, M.Sc., Ph.D., which always give advice, support, guide author on this thesis making
- 6. Mrs. Diana and Mrs. Devy with their assistance in Industrial Engineering International Program students.
- 7. Mamah, Papah, and Teteh who give trust to me for realizing their expectation on the author.
- 8. All of author's Industrial Engineering International Program batch 2016 (Dina, Sella, Tika, Ayanti, Rahma, Adhit, Agung, Farhan, Apip, Ayub, Thoriq, Adam, Andi, Brilian, Cavin, Dhani, Uncu, Putra, Mahfudz, Yudi, Othman, Pandu, Yuri, Rayhan, Tsani, and, Umar). Thank you for the good times.

- Assistants of DSK&E which are batch from batch '14 until '18, I am so lucky to be part of this. Also, for especially the author's Ergo Crew from batch 2016 (Ayas, Anin, Rino, Safri, Tasya, Sinta). Thank you for your joy and sorrow.
- 10. All C.I.S. (Community International Students) from 2016 2018 committee who develop me how to be part in the organization
- 11. All Marcomm IP 2016 2018 friends who develop me how to work professionally.
- 12. All of study participants who spent their time to assist this thesis completed.
- 13. All parties, which cannot be mentioned one by one, who support the author to complete this undergraduate thesis.

Author realize this undergraduate thesis far from the word of 'perfect', so the author appreciates if the reader gives critics and recommendation. Author hopes that this report can give many benefits for all parties.



Yogyakarta, 24 September 2020

Dean Tirkaamiana

ABSTRACT

Pocari Sweat does advertising in many media such as television, billboard, and social media. One of social media that Pocari Sweat uses is Instagram. The photo of advertisement in 2019 is used human as model but most photos in the beginning of 2020 is use only product. From Top Brand Index, it is known that in 2020 there is the decreasing in Top Brand Index which one of factor is top of mind or related to the brand awareness. The human model utilization can gain more interest and direct to brand awareness, but in 2020 the photo only use product as object. This usage in 2020 can lead to the decreasing of Top of Mind. The solution can be use managed by employing a human as model, but the model usage spends more cost rather than only product. So, the researcher wants to explore how should be the advertisement with only uses product as object can gain most interest. In this research, Picture A, Picture B, Picture C, Picture D, and Picture E are selected by using AOI (Area of Interest) as the representation of Pocari Sweat. So, to get the result, the researcher uses eye tracking method in order to know the average fixation time and the heat map. After experiment is conducted by involving 40 respondents, the researcher found a result. The criteria attached in Picture E is 'The Pocari Sweat dominates in the picture'. The result is Picture E, which get the most interest with average fixation time is 5.08 and the red spot cover the AOI.

Keywords: Pocari Sweat, Eye Tracking, Average Fixation Time, Heat Map, AOI

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AU	THENTICITY STATEMENT	••••••	•••••	•••••	•••••	ii
THE	ESIS APPROVAL OF SUPER	RVISOR				iii
THE	ESIS APPROVAL OF EXAM	INATION	N COM	MITTEE		iv
AN	ALYSIS OF PREFERENCE (CRITERIA	A OF P	OCARI SW	EAT ADVE	RTISEMENT WITH
EYI	E-TRACKING APPROACH .				•••••	iv
DEI	DICATION PAGE			•••••	•••••	v
MO	ТТО					vi
PRE	EFACE		ISL	-AM		vii
ABS	STRACT					ix
TAI	BLE OF CONTENTS				<u> </u>	X
LIS	Г OF TABLES				<u> </u>	xiii
LIS	Г OF FIGURES					xiv
CHA	APTER I	<u>≥</u>				
INT	RODUCTION	<u>IZ</u>				
1.1	Background					
1.1	Problem Formulation					
1.2	Research Objective				•••••	
1.3	Scope of Research				•••••	5
1.4	Benefit of Research			•••••	•••••	
1.6	Systematical of Research			•••••	•••••	6
CHA	APTER II			•••••	•••••	
LIT	ERATURE REVIEW			•••••	•••••	
2.1	Empirical Study					
2.2	Theoretical Study					
	2.2.1 Ergonomic		•••••			
	2.2.2 Usability					
	2.2.3 User Experience					

2.2.4 Human-Computer Interaction	24
2.2.5 Visual Attention	25
2.2.6 Visual System	26
2.2.7 Eye-tracking	30
2.2.8 AOI (Areas of Interest)	31
2.2.9 Heat Map	32
2.2.10 Top of Mind	33
2.2.11 Brand Awareness	33
2.2.12 Advertising	34
2.2.13 Static and Dynamic Images	35
2.2.14 Instagram in Marketing	36
2.2.15 Normality Test	36
2.2.16 ANOVA One-Way Test	37
2.2.17 Kruskal-Wallis Test	38
CHAPTER III	39
RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	39
3.1 Research Object	39
3.2 Research Subject	40
3.3 Type of Research Data	40
3.4 Method of Data Collection	41
3.4.1 Research Instrument	41
3.4.2 Experiment Design	41
3.5 Method of Data Processing and Analysis	42
3.5.1 Analysis of Statistical	42
3.5.2 Analysis of Heat map	44
3.6 Flowchart of Research	45
CHAPTER IV	49
DATA COLLECTION AND PROCESSING	49
4. 1 Data Collection	49
4.1.1 Criteria of Pocari Sweat Advertisement	50
4.1.2 Respondent Profile	56

4.1.4 ANOVA test	60
CHAPTER V	65
RESULT AND DISCUSSION	65
5.1 Analysis of Criteria	65
5.1.1 Analysis of Picture A's Criteria	66
5.1.2 Analysis of Picture B's Criteria	67
5.1.3 Analysis of Picture C's Criteria	68
5.1.4 Analysis of Picture D's Criteria	69
5.1.5 Analysis of Picture E's Criteria	70
5.2 Analysis of Interesting Pocari Sweat Advertisement Level	71
5.2.1 Analysis of The Fifth Most Interested Advertisement	71
5.2.2 Analysis of The Fourth Most Interesting Picture	72
5.2.3 Analysis of The Third Most Interested Picture	73
5.2.4 Analysis The Second Most Interested Picture	74
5.2.5 Analysis of The Most Interested Picture	75
CHAPTER VI	77
6.1 Conclusion	77
6.1.1 The Criteria of Each Pocari Sweat Advertisement	77
6.1.2 The Most Interesting Pocari Sweat Advertisement	78
6.2 Recommendation	78
REFERENCES	79
ATTACHMENT	85

LIST OF TABLES

Table 4. 1. Respondent Profile	56
Table 4. 2. Fixation Time of AOI from each picture	57
Table 4. 3 Normality Test Result	59
Table 4. 4 Descriptive Data Result	60
Table 4. 5 ANOVA Result	60



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. 1 Instagram Feed of Pocari Sweat	2
Figure 2. 1 Gaze Plot	9
Figure 2. 2 Heat map of the eye-tracking data from the experiment	. 10
Figure 2. 3 Count Heat Map for Faces and logos Prototype	. 11
Figure 2. 4 Advertisement with branding in the heading	. 12
Figure 2. 5 Advertisement without the brand in the heading	. 13
Figure 2. 6 Flora (left) and Kellog's (right) advertisements	. 13
Figure 2. 7 Bokomo (left) and House of Coffees (right) advertisements	. 14
Figure 2. 8 Total Fixation Count for Each AOI's defined (1)	. 15
Figure 2. 9 Total Fixation Count for Each AOI's defined (2)	. 16
Figure 2. 10 Total Fixation Count for Each AOI's defined (3)	. 17
Figure 2. 11 The Eye	. 27
Figure 2. 12 Cone of Vision	. 28
Figure 2. 13 Heat Map	. 33
Figure 3. 1 Experiment Design	. 42
Figure 3. 2 Level of Interest	. 44
Figure 3. 3 Research Flowchart	. 46
Figure 4. 1 Pocari Sweat Advertisement Picture	. 50
Figure 4. 2 Cluster 1	. 51
Figure 4. 3 Cluster 2	. 51
Figure 4. 4 Cluster 3	. 52
Figure 4. 5 Cluster 4	. 52
Figure 4. 6 Cluster 5	. 53
Figure 4. 7 Picture A (Cluster 1)	. 53
Figure 4. 8 Picture B (Cluster 2)	. 54
Figure 4. 9 Picture C (Cluster 3)	. 54
Figure 4. 10 Picture D (Cluster 4)	. 55
Figure 4. 11 Picture E (Cluster 5)	. 55
Figure 4. 15 Heat map of Picture A	. 61
Figure 4. 16 Heat map of Picture B	. 62
Figure 4. 17 Heat map of Picture C	. 63
Figure 4. 18 Heat map of Picture D	. 63
Figure 4. 19 Heat map of Picture E	. 64

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

Business people never be tired of making innovation to compete with other business people. Many types of beverages as innovation of food and beverages. One of beverage business innovation is the isotonic beverage. Based on BSN (1998), the isotonic beverage is one of the carbonation or non-carbonated soft drink products to improve fitness, which contains sugar, citric acid, and minerals. In Indonesia, there is an isotonic beverage with several brands; one of them is Pocari Sweat.

Pocari Sweat is the product from PT Amerta Indah Otsuka. PT. Amerta Indah Otsuka is established as the result of joint investment between Otsuka Pharmaceutical Japan and PT Kapal Api. With the affiliation of Otsuka Pharmaceutical Japan, it is not surprising many investors from Japan making the stock investment in this company. The higher the sale of Pocari Sweat, the higher the investors are investing in shares of PT Amerta Indah Otsuka. The aim of higher sales not only to gain many investors but also to create profit as much as possible. Because of that, PT. Amerta Indah Otsuka spends a lot of effort to make customer has the intention to purchase Pocari Sweat. The sense of purchase begins with the brand awareness. The company affects the consumer awareness on the brand by advertising (Domet et al., 2017). According to Kartajaya (2010), differentiation is all the efforts made by the

company to create a difference between competitors with the aim of providing the best value for consumers.

Pocari Sweat does advertising in many media such as television, billboard, also in social media like the other company. Saravanakumar and Lakshmi (2012) declared that most companies now regularly use social media for advertising their products and building positive consumer relationships. One of much social media is Instagram. Instagram marketing is an effective way to promote a product, as it is said that a picture speaks a thousand words (Silva *et al.*, 2013). Moreover, Instagram claims that Instagrammer opens at least one business profile every day, and 23% from Indonesia Population use Instagram (Clement, 2020). Pocari Sweat is consistent in posting photos of its product in its Instagram Feed (main Instagram profile page and the pictures and videos where to post).

In 2019, most of the advertisements employ human as model. But in 2020, most of the advertisements only use the product or Pocari Sweat. Pocari Sweat advertisement in 2019 and 2020 can be seen in Figure 1.1.



Figure 1. 1 Instagram Feed of Pocari Sweat

Unfortunately, in 2020 also Pocari Sweat has decreased its value in the Top of Brand Index. Top Brand Index is the combination of Top of Mind, Last Usage, and Future Intention assessment. Top Brand Index from www.topbrand-award.com can be seen in table 1.1.

	Top Brand Index	
Isotonic Beverage	2019	2020
Pocari Sweat	68.3%	66.2%
Mizone ISL	18.2%	22.1%
Fatigon Hydro	2.2%	4.0%

Table 1. 1. Top Brand Index of Isotonic Beverage

Based on Pasha and Masoom (2013), Top of Mind Awareness (TOMA) as the focus of the study is described as the customers' frame of mind that permits them to have a particular brand name on the tip of their tongue and might mean that they are aware of that particular brand. So, top of mind is one of the factors of brand awareness (Aaker, 1996). To increase brand awareness, more attention should be put to the advertisement. To gain more attention, a model could be employed in their advertisements as suggested by Djamasbi, et al. (2012), said heat maps from various eye-tracking experiments consistently and repeatedly show that people are drawn to faces, particularly when browsing a webpage. When human images are presented on the websites, viewers tend to focus mainly on faces. Yet, from the economic perspective, the usage of model has a higher cost than the picture of product.

Many Pocari Sweat Instagram advertisements in 2020 use product rather than using human as a model. As it is already declared that using model could gain more attention in the advertisement, so that the advertisement in 2020 has less attention rather than in 2019. This new advertisement can be one of factors the decreasing of Top of Mind Awareness of Pocari Sweat. The best solution is using human as model for its advertisement, but it is notified that using the product as an advertisement object will minimize the cost. So, it is important to conduct further research related to the advertisement with a product as an advertisement object in order to improve brand awareness and minimize cost.

The researcher wants to find how the criteria of advertisement with the product by eye-tracking, which will create the most attention to increasing brand awareness but with less cost and also pay more attention to the logo or brand. Eye-tracking in marketing research demonstrated the importance of measuring customer attention to better understand how people view advertising scenes visually and assess the efficacy of visual marketing stimuli (Chandon et al., 2009). Also, another function of eye tracking can be demonstrated where customers concentrate their attention and brand awareness output by providing additional graphic presentations, including qualitative and quantitative results (Pretorius & Calitz, 2011). With eye-tracking, it will be identified how the design of Pocari Sweat advertisement could attract the interest towards the brand due to the brand awareness. By using eye-tracking the duration and the level of people's interest towards brand can be analyzed. So, the cost to make advertisement will not be spent useless, since the company can decide which advertisement that will get the highest interest. The high brand awareness from advertisement will lead to the high intention of purchase.

Stall Harris Harris

1.1 Problem Formulation

Based on the background above, the problem can formulate as below:

- 1. How are the criteria of each Pocari Sweat advertisement with only product as object?
- 2. Which Pocari Sweat Advertisement has the highest interests?

1.2 Research Objective

From problem formulation, the objective of the research is:

- 1. To identify criteria of each Pocari Sweat advertisement.
- 2. To determine one Pocari Sweat advertisement with the highest interesting.

1.3 Scope of Research

In this research, there is scope such as:

- 1. It is assumed that the respondent is the target market of Pocari Sweat.
- This research is conducted when the world is suffering from Covid-19, and the citizen should apply physical distancing. So, this experiment conducts remotely, and application of eye-tracking only based on online eye tracking with RealEye.io. The research materials are taken from Pocari Sweat Instagram.
- 3. The use of Pocari Sweat advertisement is only in the form of static images which is taken from Instagram. Because if it is a dynamic image, the focus will change and it is difficult to see how interested the respondent is.
- 4. People see Instagram through phone, but in this research the devices such as laptop for data collection are assumed provide no impacts.

1.4 Benefit of Research

The result of this research will give benefit to the company, researcher, and reader.

- 1. For the company, it will provide a reference on how to make the attractive advertisement for more attention.
- 2. For the researcher and reader, it will give new insight related to the usage of eyetracking to the advertisement.

1.6 Systematical of Research

For this thesis to be more organized, systematic research is divided into six chapters, as follows:

Chapter 1 will discuss the background of this research, problem formulation, research objective, the scope of research, the benefit of research, and systematical research. These explanations will be further explained in the literature review, which will be further elaborated in the next chapter.

Then the concepts and principles are needed to solve research problems. So, those will be discussed in chapter 2. In addition, it also includes a description of the results of previous studies carried out by other researchers related to this research. Once the reviews have been described in detail, a method is needed to solve existing problems and the stages of their solution.

To make this research more organized, the researcher should make a description of the research framework, the framework and flow chart, the methods used, the data collection techniques, the materials, the tools, the research procedure, and the data to be studied and the methods of analysis to be used. This is followed by research and data processing, which will be discussed further in the next chapter. Those will be positioned in chapter 3.

After that, data collected during research and processed using the methods that have been selected will be discussed in chapter 4. This chapter is a reference for the discussion of the results to be discussed in chapter 5.

Next chapter discusses the results of the study and analyzes of theoretical explanations qualitatively, quantitatively and statistically based on the results of the research

and studies that are designed to meet the research objectives. Then, the answers are also expected based on the formulation of the problem in the introductory chapter.

Surely, the Then, it is absolutely some findings founded in the research and suggestions or proposals for the outcomes are nothing without proof of theories, answers and recommendations. The experience and consideration of researchers can be used for further development of research. So, chapter 6 is designated to discuss above matters.



CHAPTER II

LITERATURE REVIEW

ISLAM

2.1 Empirical Study

Bhavani (2015) conducted research entitled Gaze Pattern on Spontaneous Human Face, in which the patterns of facial gaze processing of young subjects were conducted on face viewing with neutral expression to recognize ways of spontaneous human face gazing. Twenty-two subjects, all right-handed, aged 25.5 ± 5.4 years (females =16), from visiting graduate students to NIOH and staffs of NIOH were recruited. On this eye-tracking experiment with spontaneous gazing of neutral face photography, the majority of subjects looked at the upper half of the face near the bilateral face area with a gaze plot study. The result of the study shows in the figure 2a, the pattern of the human facial gaze of a single subject with the directionality of gaze with a radius of the circle indicating the duration of gaze (foveation or visual focusing) and for figure 2b shows the pattern of the human facial gaze of all subjects with each of the color indicating the facial processing pattern of the individual subject. From this previous research, it is possible the result, because there are higher contrast areas in the top part of the face (such as eyebrow). Also, the respondents only consist of 22 peoples in practice; the central limit theorem can be applied to a minimum sample size of 30. Even stated for sample sizes greater than 20, the normal distribution can be used to approach the binomial distribution (Agung, 2006:83). Also, the researcher will adopt the gaze plot from this previous research improvement, such as give the number of each gaze to represent the sequence of gaze.



Figure 2. 1 Gaze Plot Source: Bhavani (2015)

Drusch et al. (2015) did research entitled Analyzing eye-tracking data: From scan paths and heat maps to the dynamic visualization of areas of interest. This research involves 113 French participants, with an average of 23 years old. There is an equal proportion of the number of men and women, but data from 13 subjects were discarded because of the calibration problems. Most of the subjects (97,7%) have used the Internet for at least 3 years, and 88.6% of the participants indicated to be connected on the Web for at least one hour per day. In this research, they make another conclusion related to the heat map, which is the logo seems not very important as figure 5. In this previous research, the result of the heat map is already discussed, but the meaning of each gaze color.



Figure 2. 2 Heat map of the eye-tracking data from the experiment Source: Drusch et al. (2015)

Djamasbi et al. (2014) carried out a research entitled "Can Fixation on Main Images Predict Visual Appeal of Homepages?", they were comparing the website with people image and without people image with regression analysis and t-test of the duration and visual appeal rating. Thirty-one employees of various business (16 female; 15 male) are recruited as a participant in this experiment. With regression analysis, it is proved that the hypothesis of fixation on main images could predict the visual appeal ratings of the homepage is supported. From t-test of fixation duration on main images shows fixation duration was significantly longer on main images that include people. In this research, a participant's overall aesthetic reaction to a page is measured with a survey. This survey is conducted with participant rate the visual appeal of the page on a 5-point Likert scale (1 = Not at all appealing; 5 = Very appealing). From t-tests comparing visual appeal of pages shows that visual appeal rating of homepages that have people in their main image are more positive than those pages that do not include people in their main images. In this previous study, the researcher only observes homepage. Therefore, care must be taken when generalizing the results.

Djamasbi et al., 2010 performed a research entitled "Efficiency, Trust, and Visual Appeal: Usability Testing through Eye-Tracking". They were comparing user's opinions on and reactions to two web pages with a visual appeal which are faces and logo. In this research,

there are two studies, which are online survey as the study I and eye-tracking as study II. Study I aims to examine whether user behaviour differed between the two web page prototypes with five hundred twenty-two employees of a leading financial company. That participant should complete all tasks and asked to rate the visual appeal of the web page they viewed. The result of t-test for visual appeal rate, faces prototype was rated as significantly more appealing than the logo prototype. The result of t-test for mean task time (in minutes), the completion time for Task 1 was significantly faster than for task 2. In study II, forty participants were recruited from the same leading company with participants in study II with age ranged from twenty to fifty years. These participants were randomly assigned to the logos or faces prototype. There is no significant difference between task completion times in Studies I and II based on t-test result. The duration and count heat map show fewer and shorter fixations on the text on the text on the faces prototype with the text on the logos prototype. This indicates that participants viewed the information required to complete the critical tasks for less time on the faces prototype. It means that the images of faces were more helpful to users in obtaining and processing the needed information. This research concludes that the images of faces were more effective than logos in delivering the intended message. The location of the images on the page may play a role in user behaviour and reactions as well, particularly in the context of eye-tracking.



Figure 2. 3 Count Heat Map for Faces and logos Prototype Source: Djamasbi et al. (2014)

In a research conducted by Pretorius and Calitz (2011) entitled "The Contribution of Eye Tracking to Brand Awareness Studies" research is divided into two studies which are focusing on print advertisement by eye-tracking. In study I, the aim is to evaluate advertisements (beauty products) towards black females who are readers of a specific magazine. First, study I includes an advertisement with branding in the heading as figure 2.4. The result of this study is heading that is fixated faster than the main brand (except the five-second advert where the difference was 0.02 s). The heading had at least 90% of participants fixating on it every time. It also had more fixations than the main brand every time. It might happen because the heading has more words than the brand; however, the fastest time to fixation and number of participants who fixated on the heading, gives the heading the best chance of being viewed by participants.



Figure 2. 4 Advertisement with branding in the heading Source: Pretorius and Calitz (2011)

This advertisement had the brand in the heading. Also, in study I, they observed on an advertisement without a brand in the heading as figure 6, and the result is the same, which is heading outperformed the brand.



Figure 2. 5 Advertisement without the brand in the heading Source: Pretorius and Calitz (2011)

In study II, the objective that should be proven by eye tracking can offer and had to be conducted within a certain timeframe. First, in study II, advertisements with branding at the bottom. The Flora heat map shows fixations on the Flora mascot, the big words "OMEGA 3 & 6" as well as fixations on the brand. However, the brand did receive less attention than the other areas. The mean time was 1.95 seconds, a fairly slow time allocated for participants, which is only three seconds to view each advertisement. The Kellogg's advertisement heat map also shows that the brand at the bottom was poorly fixated as described by Figure 2.6.



Figure 2. 6 Flora (left) and Kellog's (right) advertisements Source: Pretorius and Calitz (2011)

The second object in study II is advertisements with the branding at the top. The Bokomo heat map illustrated in figure 2.7 shows that participants are caught up into the big words "WIN", "CAPTURE", "NATURE". The brand name is also well fixated. The mean time to the first fixation on the brand was 0.3 seconds (s), a very fast time showing quick fixations on the brand name. The House of Coffees heat map shows the brand name being well fixated. Pictures were fixated too, but the small text received almost no fixations. The mean time to the branding at the top was 0.86 seconds. These times are very fast, showing quick fixations on the brand name.



Figure 2. 7 Bokomo (left) and House of Coffees (right) advertisements Source: Pretorius and Calitz (2011)

The findings of the studies above demonstrate that eye-tracking could have a boost to brand awareness studies of advertisements. The main finding of study II reveals that participants fixated are more on the advertisements with branding at the top than the advertisements with branding at the bottom. These findings suggest the marketing professionals to have their branding at the top of an advertisement. In this previous study, the result is revealed without statistical test. Also, the result only identified by its position, hence it will be better if the size of branding also considered.

According to "Eye Tracking Application on Emotion Analysis for Marketing Strategy" from Zamani et al. (2016) for the past two decades, marketing researchers tended

to neglect the emotional part of consumer behaviour while much focusing on decisionoriented models of information processing, while all marketers hope to understand customers and their purchase decisions. However, when explicitly asked, most people cannot fully and sometimes, do not even want to explain their choices. Somehow, they are not aware of the inner processes that drive their reactions and decisions. This is because 95% of the decisionmaking process occurred subconsciously. The experiment was designed to happen under the most realistic conditions as if they were realistically shopping in the retail environment. Nine respondents participated in this study. The parameters are the position of the product on the shelf (shelf number), price, brand, advertising, design of packaging, and size. These parameters were defined as AOI. The eye tracker is collecting several metrics such fixation count (number of fixations), fixation duration (length of fixations in milliseconds), total fixation duration (fixation count times fixation duration), per cent fixated (per cent of the sample who fixated in the AOI), time to first fixation (in milliseconds), and scan path (chronological fixations and saccades) for each AOI. In the following, each different parameter explained briefly with figures of the corresponding result of response attention.

A. Size of products.

Figure 2.8 shows a comparison between a bottled Coca Cola and a canned Coca Cola to identify which size is more preferable by the respondent.



Figure 2. 8 Total Fixation Count for Each AOI's defined (1) Source: Zamani et al. (2016)

B. Design of Packaging

The original image of Nutella spread in Figure 2.9 compares the three jars of Nutella in term of packaging's design. The bar chart in Figure 10 shows that fixation count sum is highest for the first jar (yellow AOI), followed by the second jar (green AOI), and third jar (blue AOI). The product and its packaging influence attention, evaluation, and ultimately, impact the consumer purchasing decision on the product.



Figure 2. 9 Total Fixation Count for Each AOI's defined (2) Source: Zamani et al. (2016)

C. Advertisement.

Three AOIs were defined for the KFC advertisement in Figure 2.10 The AOIs define the 'food' (blue), the 'price' (yellow), and the 'description' (turquoise). The number of fixations on the food setup recorded, as shown in Figure 2.10 as the highest at 202 counts, followed by 26 counts at a price and 13 counts at the description.



Figure 2. 10 Total Fixation Count for Each AOI's defined (3) Source: Zamani et al. (2016)

Based on research entitled "Product versus Celebrity – An eye-tracking experiment for the determination of the attention-catcher in advertising" that studied by Nistoreanu et al. (2019) said that celebrity endorsement in advertising had been a common practice in the past years, but few studies have been preoccupied about their efficiency for the advertised brand. In order to determine the efficiency of celebrity endorsement and the most attractive elements for the attention of the consumer, an eye-tracking experiment has been carried out, analyzing four coffee advertisings. Two of the advertisings contain only product-related elements such as the package containing the logo and a cup of coffee (advertising for product P1) and the logo and a cup of coffee (advertising for product P2). Two of the advertisings place a figure of a celebrity besides the product-related elements. For product P3, the advertising has shown an international average known celebrity drinking a cup of coffee and the logo of the product. For product P4, the advertising has shown a national celebrity drinking a cup of coffee and the advertising printouts for 10 seconds. The eye-tracking experiment has been carried out on a sample of 25 persons.

The results of the eye-tracking experiment showed that the participants definitely watch more the celebrity in the advertising than the logo or the product itself. In table 1, it can be observed that for the advertisings without a celebrity the average time the consumers have watched the product's logo is of 1157.9 ms = 1.1579 seconds (SD = 815.9) which represents 76.7% of the total time watching the advertising. Moreover, the hit ratio was 92%, which means that 23 out of 25 respondents have watched the logo. In the case of the two advertisings containing celebrities, most of the time has been spent watching them. The average time watching the celebrities was of 1294.5 ms = 1.2945 seconds (SD = 850.1), representing 78.7% of the total advertising watching time. The hit ratio for the logo was only 52%, meaning that only 13 of the respondents have watched the logo of the advertised product. The results of the research show that the presence of a celebrity in advertising can distract the attention of the consumer from the logo or the product itself. Consumers tend to focus their attention on analyzing the celebrity and less on the advertised product. For this reason, it is important to analyze carefully and develop wisely the advertising campaigns that endorse celebrities. Celebrity endorsement can be very efficient only if the placement of the logo, the product and the celebrity can make a differentiation for the advertised brand. In this previous study, the researcher already shows the gaze-plot and the heat map. But the researcher only discusses matters that related to the total fixation count.

Many previous researches related to eye-tracking of product and face in website and advertisement are visualized with heat map and scan path. Also, there is several researched related to the eye-tracking of advertisement. But it did not discuss the design and position in advertisement by using only product without a human model. Researcher sees the possibility of future research related eye-tracking on several advertisements of Pocari Sweat with the product as the object. So, this research will analyze how the criteria of advertisement should gain more interests from the audience. It will be visualized by average fixation time and heat map. The result will be a consideration for determination of the advertisement with the most interests.

2.2 Theoretical Study

2.2.1 Ergonomic

Ergonomics is the science of work: of the people who do it and the ways of it is done, of the tools and equipment they use, the places they work in, and the psychosocial aspects of the working situation.

The word 'ergonomics' comes from the Greek: ergos, work; nomos, natural law. The word was coined by the late Professor Hywell Murrell, as a result of a meeting of a working party, which was held in Room 1101 of the Admiralty building at Queen Anne's Mansions on July 8, 1949—at which it was resolved to form a society for 'the study of human beings in their working environment'. The members of this working party came from backgrounds in engineering, medicine and the human sciences. During the course of the war, which had just ended, they had all been involved with research of one sort or another into the efficiency of the fighting man. And they took the view that the sort of research they had been doing could have important applications under peacetime conditions. There did not seem to be a name for what they had been doing; however, so they had to invent one and finally settled on 'ergonomics' (Pheasant, 2003).

According to Tarwaka (2004), in general, the purpose of the application of ergonomics is:

- a. Improving physical and mental well-being through prevention of work-related injuries and illnesses, decreasing physical and mental workload, seeking promotion and job satisfaction.
- b. It is improving social welfare through improving the quality of social contacts, managing and coordinating the work appropriately and improving social security both during productive and after-productive periods.

c. Creating a rational balance between various aspects of the technical, economic, anthropological and cultural aspects of each system work done so as to create quality work and high quality of life.

ISLAM

Ergonomics can be defined simply as the study of work. More specifically, ergonomics is the science of designing the job to fit the worker, rather than physically forcing the worker's body to fit the job. Adapting tasks, work stations, tools, and equipment to fit the worker can help reduce physical stress on a worker's body and eliminate many potentially serious, disabling work-related musculoskeletal disorders (MSDs). (Ergonomics: The Study of Work, 2000)

Serie Charles Charles

2.2.2 Usability

ISO / IEC 25010 describes usability as the "degree to which the specified user may use the product or system to achieve the specified goals with efficiency, efficiency and satisfaction in the specified context of use." It considers usability to be a subset of quality in use consisting of 'effectiveness,' 'efficiency' and 'satisfaction.' This does not provide "freedom from risk" or "context reporting."

The ISO / IEC 25010 "product quality model" consists of eight characteristics: mechanical suitability, durability, consistency, efficiency, accessibility, protection,

flexibility, upkeep and portability. As a characteristic of a product quality model, usability consists of six sub-characteristics, described as the degree to which:

- Consumers may determine that the product or program is acceptable to their needs (appropriateness of recognition)
- The product or method should be used by identified consumers to meet the particular goals of learning how to use the product or program with efficacy, performance, risk-freeness and enjoyment in a given sense of usage (learnability);
- A device or program has features that allow it convenient to use and manage (operability)
- A framework defends users from malfunction (user malfunction protection)
- A user interface allows user experience (user interface aesthetics) that is appealing and rewarding.
- A product or system can be used by users with the widest set of features and skills to accomplish a specific target in a defined field of usage (accessibility)
 "Learnability" and "operability" are inherited of ISO / IEC 9126. "Understandability" has been replaced by "appropriateness awareness" and "attraction" has been replaced by "user interface aesthetics." "Usability enforcement" has been eliminated; "User error security" and "Accessibility" has now been implemented.

ISO / IEC 25010 suggests that the usability may either be defined or calculated as a commodity consistency characteristic in terms of its sub-characteristics or that it can be described or calculated explicitly by metrics that are subsets of in-use quality.

Nielsen & Loranger (2006) described usability as a consistency characteristic for how simple it is to use, more precisely how:

- Fast people will learn to use it (learnability),
- Effective they use it (efficiency),
- Unforgettable it is (memorability),

- Error-prone it is (errors)
- Users enjoy using it (satisfaction)

Sharp, Rogers, & Preece (2007) concluded that the basic aim of usability is to ensure that digital goods are simple to understand, effective to use and enjoyable. They laid out six "usability goals": effectiveness, efficiency, safety, utility, training and memorability.

Usability.gov (2014) claims that usability is about effectiveness, efficiency, and overall user satisfaction, a combination of factors including responsive nature, ease of understanding, quality of usage, memorability, frequency and seriousness of errors, and subjective satisfaction.

Regardless of what is referred to as "attributes," "factors" or objectives, the usability aspect is recurring across both meanings. They are often related to in the ISO specifications. New model encounters, emerging technology and different forms of applications are persuasive reasons for evaluating the definition of usability, features, process, metrics and methodologies (Rusu et al., 2011, Wiberg et al., 2009)

2.2.3 User Experience

ISO 9241-210 standard (ISO 9241-210, 2010) defines User Experience (UX) As a person's perceptions and reactions resulting from the use and/or anticipated use of a product, system or service. It considers that UX "includes all user's feelings, values, desires, attitudes, physical and psychological responses, activities and accomplishments that exist before, after and after use."

One of the ISO 9241-210 standards notes clarifies that UX "is a consequence of brand image, presentation, functionality, system performance, interactive behaviour and assistive
capabilities of the interactive system, the user's internal and physical state resulting from prior experiences, attitudes, skills, and personality, and the context of use".

Sharp, Rogers, & Preece (2007) noticed that one can not design a user interface; one can not design a user experience, but just a user experience template; one can not template a user experience sensually; one can not design a sensual interaction, but only the product elements that will invoke it. They list a wide range of UX qualities:

• Positive qualities: pleasant, relaxing, interesting, thrilling, amusing, beneficial inspiring, aesthetically appealing, innovative, cognitively stimulating, encouraging, fun, provocative, shocking, emotionally fulfilling, demanding, sociable and sweet.

• Negative qualities: boring, frustrating, annoying;

Kuniavsky (2003) admitted that defining UX is difficult since it can apply to almost anything in someone's relationship with a company. As it is difficult to deal with the whole UX at once, he proposed to divide UX into manageable "chunks":

• Information architecture: the method of developing the fundamental structure framework for the information the company is attempting to convey;

• Interaction design: the manner in which the system is communicated to the consumer,

• Identity design: improves the charm and appeal of the company, rendering it unforgettable and special.

UXPA.org (2014) defines UX as any parts of the user's experience with a commodity, service or business that makes up the user's impression of the whole. It notes that UX design is concerned with all the components that make up the app together, including architecture, graphic design, audio, model sound and interaction. UX aims to integrate all components so that consumers can communicate as much as possible.

The UX concept is still under review. The "User Experience White Paper" (Roto et al., 2011) aims to "bring clarity to the UX concept". This demonstrates the multidisciplinary complexity of UX, which has contributed to a variety of UX interpretations and viewpoints, each presenting the term from a particular point of view: from a psychological point of view to a market point of view, and from a consistency point of view to a value-centric point of view.

2.2.4 Human-Computer Interaction

According to Kim (2015), Human-computer interaction (HCI) is a cross-disciplinary field (e.g. architecture, psychology, ergonomics, design) concerned with the philosophy of design, application and evaluation of human usage and engagement of computing devices. Interaction is a word that needs to be differentiated from another related phrase, interface. Roughly speaking, interaction refers to the abstract model by which humans interact with the computing device for a given task, and the interface is a choice of the technical realization (hardware or software) of such an interaction model. Thus, the letter I in HCI refers both to contact and design, to the theoretical paradigm and to the technical system.

HCI has become much more important in recent years as computers (and embedded devices) have become commonplace in almost all the facts of our lives. Aside from simply making available the necessary computational functionalities, HCI's early focus was on how to design interactions and implement high usability interfaces. The phrase "strong usability" implies that the resulting interfaces are simple to use, effective for the job, maintain protection and contribute to the proper completion of the function. Usable and efficient interaction with the computing device, in turn, results in higher productivity.

The basic esthetic appeal of interfaces (while meeting the need for usability) is now also a vital added condition for commercial success. The family of distinctly designed Apple products is a good example of this. Apple products are attractive and have created a multitude of loyal followers, even though their functionality may be virtually equal to that of their competitors. In this context, the concept of user experience (UX) has become a buzzword, a notion that encompasses not only the functional completeness, high usability and esthetic appeal of the interactive artefact but also its seamless integration into one's lifestyle or even the creation of a new one around it.

The less well-known fact is that HCI has had a huge impact on the history of computing and has changed our daily lives. It was probably the invention (or rediscovery) of the mouse that was the linchpin in the personal computer revolution, making the computer revolution, making the operation of the computer intuitive and much easier than the previous keyboard command system. The spreadsheet design has rendered market programming a big success. The Internet trend should not have existed without the webserver GUI. Smartphones, with their touch-oriented interfaces, have almost replaced the previous generation of feature phones. Body-based and action-oriented technologies are also developing innovative ways to play and experience video games. HCI continues to redefine how we view, absorb, exchange, create and manipulate information to our advantage.

2.2.5 Visual Attention

Visual attention has been studied for more than a hundred years. The psychologist William James gave a good qualitative definition of visual attention: everyone knows what attention is. It is the taking control by the consciousness, in a simple and vibrant manner, of one out of which many items or trains of thought exist concurrently. Focalization, attention, awareness is the core. It requires separating from certain issues in order to cope successfully with others. When things are apprehended by the senses, the number of them that can be attended at once is small, 'Pluribus intentus, minor est ad singula sensus.'

James (1981) believed attention to be a more internally concealed process, including creativity, expectation, or, in general, awareness. James identified attention primarily in terms of the "what" or identification, purpose or belief correlated with the object of attention.

James preferred the constructive and voluntary dimensions of focus, but he also acknowledged its passive, reflexive, non-voluntary and effortless attributes.

A complete visual attention model involves high-level visual and cognitive functions. In other words, visual attention cannot simply be explained by the mere consideration of visual features. Higher levels of intentional factors are involved (e.g. related to potentially voluntary, pre-conceived cognitive factors that attract attention).

An eye tracker can only track the open movements of the eyes but cannot track the hidden movements of visual attention. Thus, in all eye-tracking research, an implicit yet rather significant premise is generally accepted: we believe that focus is related to the path of the foveal look, yet we understand that it might not always be so.

2.2.6 Visual System

In order to "see" an object, light must reflect the object and travel to our eyes. The light energy detected by our eyes is transformed into electrical (neural) impulses and then sent to our brain for further processing. Thus, the first step in seeing an object is to register the light reflected from that object with our retina, a light-sensitive layer at the back of our eyes. There are two types of visual sensory receptors in the retina: rods and cones. Rods are involved in low-light-intensity conditions such as in a dark space or at dusk without artificial lighting. They specialize in the processing of black and white pictures. Cones, on the other hand, specialize in producing color vision, but are active only under well-lit conditions, such as in a well-lit room or in broad daylight. The retina has far fewer cones (about 7 million) than rods (about 120 million) (Duchowski, 2007). The bulk of the cones are found in the fovea, a narrow region in the middle of the retina (Figure 2.11). Due to its densely packed array of cones, fovea registers the outer world far more sharply than any other part of the retina. Therefore, in order to see an object with a 100 per cent acuity, we adjust our eyes so that the light reflected from the object falls on the fovea.



Figure 2. 11 The Eye Source: Djamasbi (2014)

While our foveal vision is sharp and colorful, it only covers about 2 degrees of our visual field, a small area approximately the size of our thumbnail kept at arm's length from our body (Figure 2). Visual acuity is slipping rapidly from the middle of the eye. For starters, we can see only around 50 percent acuity at 5 degrees. Our "useful" sensory range is restricted to about 30 degrees, and after that our retina is mainly used to track motion (Duchowski, 2007; Solso, 1996).

In other words, vision can work in a cyclical process consisting of the following steps. First, given a stimulus, such as an image, the entire scene is first seen mostly in parallel through peripheral vision and thus mostly at low resolution. At this point, interesting features can "jump out" in the field of view, in a way that activates or guides attention to their position for a more thorough inspection. Second, attention is thus turned off or disconnected from the foveal location, and the eyes are quickly repositioned to the first region that attracted attention. Third, as soon as the eyes complete their movement, the fovea is now directed at the region of interest, and attention is now engaged in the perception of the feature under high-resolution inspection.



Figure 2. 12 Cone of Vision Source: Djamasbi (2014)

a. Saccade

Saccades are rapid eye motions used to reposition fovea to a different spot in the visual context. To compensate for our narrow foveal vision, we constantly scan our visual field with fast ballistic eye movements called saccades. The term is derived from the old French word meaning "flick of a sail" (Gregory 1990). The Saccadic gestures are both voluntary and symbolic. Movements may be carried out on a voluntary basis or may be invoked as an optokinetic or vestibular corrective measure (see below). Saccades vary in length from 10 ms to 100 ms, which is fast enough to completely blind the executor during the transfer (Shebilske and Fisher 1983). There is some controversy regarding the fundamental neural mechanism controlling the saccades.

Saccades are found ballistic and stereotypical. The term stereotyping refers to the observation that particular patterns of movement can be evoked repeatedly. The word ballistic applies to the belief that saccade destinations are preprogrammed. That is, once the saccadic movement to the next required fixing position has been determined (programming latencies of around 200 ms have been reported), the saccades cannot be modified. One explanation for this assumption is that there is insufficient room during the execution of the saccade for sensory input to direct the eye to its final location (Carpenter 1977). In the other side, a saccadic guidance mechanism is possible if it is believed that, instead of external input, an internal representation of the brain, eye and goal location is used to direct the eyes through the saccade (Laurutis and Robinson 1986; Fuchs et al. 1985). Due to their rapid velocity, saccades may only appear to be ballistic (Zee et al. 1976).

b. Fixation

Shortstops between saccades, which are called fasteners, take up most of our viewing time (about 90%) (Duchowski, 2007). Fixations are eye motions that focus the retina over a fixed point of interest. It seems obvious that fixations should be created by the same neuronal circuit regulating smooth pursuits, with fixings being a special case of goal travelling at zero velocity. This is probably wrong (Leigh and Zee, 1991, pp. 139–140). Fixations, on the other hand, are marked by microscopic eye movements: tremor, drift and microsaccades (Pritchard 1961; Martinez-Conde et al . 2004; Martinez-Conde and Macknik 2015).

This is a rather counterintuitive effect of the motion-sensitive single-cell structure of the visual system. Recall that microsaccades are caused by the sensibility of motion of the single-cell physiology of the visual system. Microsaccades are eye movement impulses that are more or less spatially spontaneous, ranging in magnitude across 1–2 min of arc. The counterintuitive truth of fixing is that if the picture becomes chemically fixed on the eye, the vision fades within a second and the sight is void. Miniature eye motions that

accurately define fixings could be perceived to be noise present in the control mechanism (possibly distinct from the smooth monitoring circuit) seeking to hold the focus steady. This noise appears to be a random fluctuation in the area of fixation, usually not greater than 5 (Carpenter 1977, p. 105)

2.2.7 Eye-tracking

Based on Nielsen & Pernice (2010), Eye-tracking clearly follows the direction where a person is looking. For new technologies, it's fairly easy to see when people are gazing at a computer screen. Eyetracking hardware can be installed into a computer monitor, so eye-tracking software can maintain track of what is reflected on the device as the consumer is viewing it.

Computer power improved in the 2000s to the extent that it is now possible to assign a separate video camera to the head of the user and calculate the position of the head in realtime. Other cameras are zoomed in to gather a close-up view of both eyes. Since almost everyone is looking in the same direction with both eyes, the eye tracker draws a conclusion as to where the user is looking by averaging the calculation for both eyes. Another clever technique that popular eye-trackers use to bounce the pulse of transparent infrared light off the user's forehead. This wavelength is reflected much better by the retina than by the rest of the eye, as the retina absorbs visible light but reflects infrared. This helps the eye-tracker to identify the position of the pupils without the need for intense image recognition.

With more sophisticated technologies, it is often possible to monitor where individuals look in written records, such as magazines, and where they look in the real world, but because there is no automatic way to recognize what the consumer is looking at, but for utilizing artificial intelligence to do image detection. Therefore, much of the analyzes of such eye-tracking experiments are performed through tiresome manual analyses of video recordings. These ventures are interesting, but we confine our debate here to the usage of an eye-tracking device. Eye-tracking the concentration of the viewer's eye on the cue. Usually, this is achieved by monitoring the eye movements of the viewer. Today, most commercially accessible eyecan capture eye-tracking utilizing a covert technique known as corneal-reflective video (Duchowski, 2007). Most widely, focus measures are defined in eye-tracking studies as markers of focus, namely the frequency of fixation (density measurement) and the total length of fixation (period measurement). A number of fixations indicate the frequency of the fixations to the specific characteristics of the stimulus. The total duration of the fixing is indicated by fixing the total amount of time viewers to the stimulus or specific characteristics of the stimulus. A number of fixations indicate the frequency of the specific characteristics of the stimulus. The total length of setting the cumulative amount of time viewers to a stimulus or a specific stimulus feature. (Puskarević et al., 2016).

2.2.8 AOI (Areas of Interest)

Establish all fixations to an object that fall within a certain distance of the object is the most common approach to determining object attention. This approach is acknowledged as classification by area of interest (AOIs; also known as regions of interest). There are at least two ways in which an AOI can be defined: either using software to draw the AOI physically or using scripts describing and assigning fixations or saccades to AOIs based on their visual plane coordinates. Both approaches are widely used to conduct decision taking (Schulte-Mecklenbeck et al., 2015).

Holmqvist and colleagues (2011) have offered a variety of suggestion. About the size of AOIs, it is recommending that AOIs require buffer space (margin) of 1° to 1.5° of visual angle around the object, an area approximately the size of the fovea. When accuracy is low, then margins should be further increased to ensure that all fixations belonging to a given object are included. For circumstances where the researcher is free to design the stimuli, it is recommended that sufficient distance be given around objects to allow the researcher can

increase AOI margins without causing duplication, reducing the risk of participants processing more than one stimulus at a time.

2.2.9 Heat Map

Fixation is described as a gaze longer than three hundred milliseconds (Djamasbi et al. 2007; Djamasbi et al. 2008) was advantageous in deciding which aspects of a web page attracted the attention of participants. It was visualized as heat maps; the heat maps were created based on the entire duration of participants viewed each page. As previously described, red spots imply high levels of fixation, with yellow and green indicating decreasing amounts of fixation. Areas without red, green, or yellow spots were not fixated upon. (Djamasbi et al. 2010).

According to Nielsen & Pernice (2010), in a heat map, screenshots are color-coded by the number of looks that each component attracts: the red areas represent where people looked the most, the yellow areas show fewer fixtures, and the blue areas show the least seen regions. If the field is dark, it does not draw any fixations. The Heat Map was called because the option of colors metaphorically shows hot areas and cold areas on the screen. Heat maps may be either the number of fixings or the length of the fixings. In reality, there is generally not much difference between these two methods, particularly when calculated over a wide variety of users. Thus, thermal maps show how many seconds users look at different screen elements, not how many times they look at them.



Figure 2. 13 Heat Map

Source: Nielsen & Pernice (2010)

2.2.10 Top of Mind

There is a range of awareness from aided recall to Top of the Mind Awareness. Reminiscent, a brand when a name is presented to them is known as aided recall (Kapferer, 1997). When consumers first mention a particular brand name when they are asked about the type of retailer, merchandise category or a type of service is known as TOMA. When a brand is included in a consumer's evoked set or considered during purchase evaluation, then the goal of advertising is met (Levy, 2012).

2.2.11 Brand Awareness

Brand awareness refers to how aware costumers are of a particular business and its goods (Gustafson and Chabot, 2007). Brand awareness is critical importance to marketers as consumers will not consider a brand if they are unaware of the products offered (Tan, 2010). Ultimately, achieving successful brand awareness means that your brand is well recognized and easily identifiable (Gustafson and Chabot, 2007). The importance of brand awareness in the customer's minds can be measured at various stages for example recognition, recall, top of mind, brand dominance (they only call that particular brand), brand knowledge (what brand means to you) (Aaker D., 1996). According to Dodds, Monroe and Grewal (1991), a higher level of brand awareness can affect the customer buying decision. According to

Macdonald and Sharp (2000), while customers are familiar with the product and willing to buy it, brand recognition is another aspect that still affects purchasing decision.

2.2.12 Advertising

Nizamuddin (n.d) stated that advertising is only one element of the promotion mix but is often seen as prominent in the overall design of the marketing mix. Its high profile and pervasiveness have rendered it a significant social and encomia problem in Indian society. Promotion may be defined as "the coordination of the efforts made by all sellers to set up channels of information and persuasion to facilitate the scale of a good or service." Promotion is most often intended to be a supporting component of a marketing mix. Promotion decisions must be synchronized and aligned with the remainder of the marketing mix, in specific product/brand decisions, so that they can successfully help the whole marketing mix approach. The advertising blend is made up of four fundamental components.

They are:

- 1. Advertising
- 2. Personal Selling
- 3. Sales Promotion, and
- 4. Publicity



1. Advertising is the dissemination of information by non-personal means through paid media where the sponsoring organization is the source.

2. Commercial sales are the distribution of information through non-governmental means, such as face-to-face communication with the public and employees of the supporting company. The sponsoring organization is the source of information.

3. Sales promotion is the dissemination of information through a broad range of activities, other than personal sales, advertisement, that stimulate customer purchasing and dealer performance.

4. Publicity is the distribution of knowledge through personal or non-governmental means that is not compensated explicitly by the company and is not the basis of the material.

What Advertisement Is?

Advertisement is a mass communication of information intended to convince buyers of products with a view to maximizing the profits of a company. The advertising elements are:

(i) mass communication to a large group of consumers.

(ii) Making mass production possible.

(iii) It is a non-personal communication, as it is not made available to the actual person or addressed to a specific person.

(iv) It is a commercial communication because it is used to help ensure that the advertiser has a long business life with profitable sales.

(v) Ads may be competitive, because it targets broad numbers of individuals. This keeps the cost of a message low.

(vi) The communication is quick, allowing the advertiser to speak to millions of buyers in a matter of a few hours.

(vii) Advertising shall be defined as correspondence. In order to publicize his identity, the advertiser signs his name in his advertisement.

2.2.13 Static and Dynamic Images

Based on Reed and Kazemi (2009) perception and behavior are also combined in the creation of complex pictures. We describe dynamic images as images that include motion and movement. Static pictures, by contrast, do not move. Although extensive research has shown that imaging is an efficient technique for encoding words in a recall mission, this research (to the best of our knowledge) has not explicitly compared the relative effectiveness of static and dynamic images for retrieval of concrete nouns. This analogy was inspired by the important role dynamic images play in other memory tasks, such as remembering action phrases.

2.2.14 Instagram in Marketing

Instagram was founded in 2010 (Bergstrom & Backman, 2013). It is a mobile application, which allows users to share their photos and videos to their followers (Dubovik, 2013). Instagram can help a company to promote their products or services (Bevins, 2014). The point that makes Instagram different from other social media is that Instagram is applying a visual-based strategy (Hird, 2013). Everything about Instagram is about the photograph (Linaschke, 2011). Instagram marketing is an effective way to advertise a product, as it is said that a picture speaks a thousand words (Silva et al., 2013). Moreover, social media also provide marketers with an easier way to understand their customers. In the case of Instagram, leaving comments and receiving comments on the photoposts can gain more feedback from the organization and the users, so being attentive to the comments would help in improving the relationship with customers (Dennis, 2014).

2.2.15 Normality Test

The normality test can be conducted using the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test, and the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test is considered to be a distribution test. The variables being evaluated are constant, so the data used in the test are not calculated on an ordinal scale. Principles of the Kolmogorov-Smirnov test is to measure the absolute difference between the cumulative probability function of the sample and the expected distribution function for each class interval (Daniel, 1989).

- 1. Hypothesis
 - $H_0: F(\theta) = F((\theta) = Data is normally distributed$

- H₁: $F(\theta) \neq F((\theta) = Data is not normally distributed$
- 2. Statistical Test : $\alpha = 5\%$
- 3. Criteria of Test: Reject H_0 if sig $< \alpha$

2.2.16 ANOVA One-Way Test

One-way analysis of variance is a parametric statistical technique used to test the difference between several groups of means, in which there is only one independent or independent variable divided into several groups and one dependent or dependent variable. In the oneway Anova technique, it is usually used in experimental or Ex-Post-Facto research (Widiyanto, 2013).

Hypotheses in ANOVA will compare means of several population represented by several sample groups together, so that the mathematical hypothesis is:

 $H_0: \mu 1 = \mu 2 \dots = \mu k$

- All population means are the same
- No treatment effect (no variation in group means)

H₁: not all population means are equal

- There is at least 1 different population mean
- There is a treatment effect
- Not all population means differ (several pairs are possible same).

Basis for decision making to determine acceptance or rejection hypothesis seen from the significance of the One-Way ANOVA test with testing criteria the following:

- If the probability> 0.05, then Ho is accepted
- If the probability <0.05, then Ho is rejected

2.2.17 Kruskal-Wallis Test

To determine whether the k independent samples come from different populations, the Kruskal-Wallis one-way variant analysis focuses on the ranking of the data used (Siegel, 1997). The Kruskal-Wallis test tests the null hypothesis that the k samples come from the same population or identical populations, in terms of their means. This test assumes that the observed variables have a continuous distribution. This test requires measuring the variable at least on an ordinal scale.

Hypothesis for Kruskal-Wallis test is:

 H_0 = There is difference median of population value ($\theta_1 = \theta_2 = ... = \theta_k$)

 H_1 = Minimum there is one pair of unequal population medians



CHAPTER III

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

S ISLAM

3.1 Research Object

The object of this research is to discover which of each Pocari Sweat advertisement will be the most interesting. The most interesting advertising is represented by the highest average fixation time and red spot on the AOI in the heat map of the advertisement which assisted by eye-tracking technology. This eye-tracking technology can be obtained through an eyetracking webcam platform which is RealEye.io. The results will be visualized through a number of average fixation time between each advertisement and heat map.

The number of average fixation time of respondent means how long the respondent sees the AOI (Area of Interest) of each advertisement. The AOI in this research is the Pocari Sweat itself. From each advertisement, the respondent's fixation time will be calculated and compared. The highest average fixation time of one advertisement means that advertisement will be considered as the most interesting one, since the respondent sees the Pocari Sweat longer rather than other advertisements. Heat map of each advertisement will be discussed and compared with each other. The color spot indicates the level of interest to the area which spread out by spot. The result of this research will be the reference to company on how to make advertisement that could obtain maximum interests from people.

3.2 Research Subject

In this research, 40 respondents are involved. The selection of 39 respondents was based on "How to Conduct Eye tracking Studies" from Pernice and Nielsen (2009). They assumed that researchers need good-quality eye-tracking results from 30 users. This means that researchers need to run about 39 users through the eye tracker to account for lost data with current eye-tracking technology. (About 23% of users tested do not generate sufficient high quality eye-tracking data, either because their eyes are calibrated poorly or because the equipment acts up. Thus, if we test 39 users, we will lose the data from 9 of them, leaving 30 good recordings). But, in this research, the author collects 40 respondents. Those 40 data can be reduced due to the integrity of the data.

The respondents who are selected in this research should fulfill the requirements, such as:

- The age of respondent should be in range from 20 25 years old.
- The respondent already known the Pocari Sweat.
- The respondent is Instagram user.
- The respondent has laptop that can access RealEye.io and with webcam.

3.3 Type of Research Data

There are two types of research data which are used in this research, which are primary and secondary data with an explanation as below:

1. Primary Data

Primary data are data which collected directly from an object with an experiment. Primary data in this research is obtained from the eye-tracking test of each respondent in the form of a heat map and gaze plot. 2. Secondary Data

Secondary data are collected indirectly from literature reviews such as book, journal, or report. Secondary data are incredibly supportive for the research in analyzing data and as the base of the study.

3.4 Method of Data Collection

In this research, eye-tracking is used as a method. Respondents will be tested by looking at several advertisements with a webcam eye-tracking platform. The fixation of the respondent will be measured and visualized by utilizing heat map. This research will use within-subject design, so the respondent of two advertisements are the same.

3.4.1 Research Instrument

This research uses RealEye.io as an online platform for eye-tracking. RealEye.io can collect data using eye-tracking remotely. Respondents only need to open the website RealEye.io. After completion, the researcher can see the results.

3.4.2 Experiment Design

This research was conducted remotely, researchers and respondents were in separate places and different times. The researcher set five pictures in RealEye.io which its criteria already identified and selected. Researchers will provide a link to respondents. This link will direct respondents to the RealEye.io website. On RealEye.io, respondents will be provided with instructions. Later, the respondent will see several Pocari Sweat advertisements with a duration of 8 seconds for each. Figure 3.1 shows the illustration of experimental design.



Figure 3. 1 Experiment Design

3.5 Method of Data Processing and Analysis

In RealEye.io, the result is presented in quantitative and qualitative. The quantitative data is the fixation time of AOI. Also, the qualitative data will be in the heat map.

3.5.1 Analysis of Statistical

The result will be tested by using the statistical analysis, which is independent normality test-Kolmogorov Smirnov to identify whether the data already normalized or not.

Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov

Normality Test- Kolmogorov-Smirnov Data is a statistical test to find out and calculate whether the sample distribution is normal or can be done normally or can be considered normal (Santoso, 2001). The hypothesis used in the Kolmogorov-Smirnov data normality test is:

H₀: The distribution of sample data follows the normal distribution

H1: The distribution of sample data does not follow the normal distribution

Decision making based on hypothesis is seen from the significance level. If the significance level ≥ 0.05 , then H0 is accepted, which means that the distribution of sample data follows the normal distribution. Conversely, if the significance value <0.05, then H0 is rejected, which means the distribution of the sample data does not follow the normal distribution.

The data will be tested to know whether there is a difference between each advertisement or not. If the data are normal, the difference test will use ANOVA One Way Test.

ANOVA One Way test

One-way analysis of variance is the process of analyzing data obtained from an experiment with multiple factor levels, usually more than two-factor levels. The purpose of this analysis is to identify important independent variables and how they might influence response. (Wackerley, 2008)

H0: There is a difference between sample data

H1: There is no difference between sample data

But, if the data are not normal, the difference test will use the Kruskal-Wallis Test.

Kruskal-Wallis Test

The Kruskal-Wallis test (Kruskal-Wallis one-way analysis of variance by ranks) is a technique

Nonparametric statistics were used to test the initial hypothesis that multiple samples come from the same/identical population (Daniel, 1990)

H0: There is a difference between sample data

H1: There is no difference between sample data

3.5.2 Analysis of Heat map

From those several advertisements, the result of RealEye.io will be used to assess interest in AOI of each advertisement. From the color spot in the heat map, it will be known which part of the advertisement is most interesting based on the spot color that appears in the advertisement to strengthen the analysis of interest in the advertisement. The color code indicates the level of interest from the lowest to the highest, which are from purple, blue, green, yellow, and red respectively—those colors is illustrated in the figure below.



The color of the spot on AOI in each advertisement will be analyzed and compared to each other. To know whether the level of interest of AOI in each advertisement.

3.6 Flowchart of Research





Figure 3. 3 Research Flowchart

Figure 3.3 shows the research flowchart. This research begins with problem identification. The identified problem is related to the decreasing of the top brand index of Pocari Sweat. The decrease is due to the brand awareness of Pocari Sweat through their advertisement.

After the problem is identified, problem formulation and literature review are created. The literature review is conducted to obtain basic theory, methods used and supporting research from previous researches that share similar topic. The source of literature reviews are derived from journals and websites which support this research.

Then, the experiment is designed before it is executed in order to minimize the error and as the guideline. In this experiment, 40 respondents are required. All respondents should meet certain criteria. The criteria of respondent such as:

- The age of respondent should be in range of 20 25 years old
- The respondent already known the Pocari Sweat
- The respondent is Instagram user
- The respondent has laptop that can access RealEye.io with webcam

If the respondent does not meet those criteria, the researcher will find another respondent who fulfills those criteria until the number of respondent is 40. The researcher collects 40 respondents via online chatting. Researcher asks the respondents whether or not they available to become a participant. If the respondent agrees, then the researcher and respondent make schedule to have online meeting. through Zoom or Google Meet. The researcher instructs the respondent to locate bright place for observation purpose and prepare the laptop with webcam and stable internet access on appointment date. The respondent conducts share screen so the researcher can see and give the instruction to the respondent.

The next step is data collection, the experiment design is then executed. The respondent should access RealEye.io. Firstly, RealEye.io asked the respondent to do the eye calibration. After the respondent's eye already calibrated, then the respondent will see five pictures of Pocari Sweat advertisements. The AOI of each picture is Pocari Sweat. Those five pictures are shown with only 8 seconds and the sequence is set randomly. Then after the pictures is already seen one by one, then the respondent will fill the profile such as name, gender, and age.

After 40 respondents do the experiment, the researcher will collect the fixation time of each respondent of each picture while seeing the AOI from RealEye.io. Then data of fixation time will be tested by Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov. This normality test is applied to identify whether the data already normal or not. If the data already normal, the researcher will ensure for data differences. If the data already normal, they are tested with Parametric Test which is ANOVA-One Way in order to identify the differences existed in those data. If not, the data are tested with Non-Parametric Test, which is Kruskal Wallis Test. Then both of them will show the average of fixation time for each picture. The highest average of fixation time will identify which advertisement that is classified as the most interesting. RealEye.io will provide the result in heat map. The researcher will discuss the difference of heat map of each picture between one to another. The result of both statistical test and heat map will be discussed and integrated. Based on the result, the researcher can make conclusion and recommendation for further research.

CHAPTER IV

DATA COLLECTION AND PROCESSING

4.1 Data Collection

The data collected in this study include the respondent profile fixation time and heat map for each respondent. Data collection is conducted to gain the required data or information in order to achieve the research objective. On the other hand, data processing is arranged to transform data to be easier to understand.



4.1.1 Criteria of Pocari Sweat Advertisement

From Instagram, there are 8 pictures of Pocari Sweat advertisements which only use product's picture on the beginning of 2020. The figure as below



Figure 4. 1 Pocari Sweat Advertisement Picture

Source: @pocariid (Instagram account)

Researcher performs the clustering based on criteria of the picture. There are five clusters as below:

a. Cluster 1: "There are text and the product in big size"

In this cluster, there are three pictures that meet its criteria. Those pictures are contained with a text and Pocari Sweat in big size. Those pictures are shown in Figure 4.2.



b. Cluster 2: 'Pocari Sweat around several goods.'
In this cluster, there is only one picture which appropriate with its criterion. In this picture, the Pocari Sweat is put around several goods. This picture is shown in Figure 4.3.



Figure 4. 3 Cluster 2

c. Cluster 3: 'There is more than one product of Pocari Sweat'

In this cluster, there is only one picture that represents this criterion. In this picture, the Pocari Sweat is placed more than one unit, as seen in the Figure 4.4.



d. Cluster 4: 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side' In this cluster, there is only one picture which shows Pocari Sweat and goods side by side. This picture is shown in Figure 4.5.



Figure 4. 5 Cluster 4

e. Cluster 5: 'Pocari Sweat dominates the picture'

In this cluster, there are two pictures which shows that Pocari Sweat dominates the area of the picture. Those pictures are shown in Figure 4.6.



Figure 4. 6 Cluster 5

To narrow it, one picture is selected to represent each cluster. It is shown which picture is represented its cluster. In order to easily define the AOI, which is Pocari Sweat. The AOI is more colorful rather than the background.

Cluster 1: "There are texts and the product in big size" as represented by figure 4.7. It is defined the Figure 4.7 as picture A.



Figure 4. 7 Picture A (Cluster 1)



Figure 4. 8 Picture B (Cluster 2)

Cluster 3: 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side' is represented by Figure 4.9. It is defined the Figure 4.9 as Picture C.



Figure 4. 9 Picture C (Cluster 3)

Cluster 4: 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side' is represented by Figure 4.10. It is defined the Figure 4.10 as Picture D.



Figure 4. 10 Picture D (Cluster 4)

Cluster 5: 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side' is represented by Figure 4.11. It is defined the Figure 4.11 as Picture E.



Figure 4. 11 Picture E (Cluster 5)

In this research, 40 respondents are tested by eye-tracking. There are 6 respondents who are eliminated because of broken result. Table 4.1 shows the respondent profile with their demographic.

No	Characteris	tics	Number	Percentage	
1	Number of Respondents		34		
2	RSITAS	Familiar with Pocari Sweat	34	100%	
	Requirements	Instagram Users	34	100%	
	5	Has laptop (can access RealEye.io and Webcam)	34	100%	
3	3 Gender		17	50%	
		Female	17	50%	
3	Age	20	15	44.12%	
		21	7	20.59%	
		22	9	26.47%	
		23	2	5.88%	
		24	1	2.94%	

Table 4. 1. Respondent Profile

Average (Std.		21.02 ± 1.11
Deviation		

From the table above, it can be seen that there are 34 respondents. From 34 respondents, all of them are familiar with Pocari Sweat, Instagram user, and have laptop which can access RealEye.io and webcam. Among all, there are 17 males and 17 females. From all respondents, the minimum age is 20 and maximum age 24 with average 21.02. But this amount of data can be decreased due to the normality test.

4.1.2 Data of Fixation Time of AOI

Table 4.2 shows the fixation time of each respondent for each picture with a name that already elaborated in chapter 3.

	Picture									
		A B		С		D		Е		
	Fixat		Fixat		Fixat		Fixat		Fixat	
	ion		ion		ion	en de la	ion		ion	
Respon	Time	Percen	Time	Percen	Time	Percen	Time	Percen	Time	Percen
dent	of	tage of	of	tage of	of	tage of	of	tage of	of	tage of
	AOI	Total	AOI	Total	AOI	Total	AOI	Total	AOI	Total
	(s)	Time	(s)	Time	(s)	Time	(s)	Time	(s)	Time
1	2.97	40%	2.24	30%	0.4	5%	1.06	15%	5.58	75%
2	0.97	48%	0.81	11%	2.53	40%	0.75	12%	3.96	62%
3	1.88	26%	0	0	1.04	14%	2.82	39%	4.02	57%
4	2.43	35%	0.25	4%	1.27	23%	0	0%	5.29	73%
5	4.03	67%	0.49	7%	4.93	68%	0.95	13%	5.66	75%
6	3	45%	0.09	2%	2.77	32%	1.04	16%	1.91	29%
7	3.86	39%	0.02	1%	2.69	37%	1.02	15%	6.85	91%
8	2.75	43%	1.14	9%	2.26	34%	0	0%	6.63	88%
9	1.6	22%	2.83	38%	3.55	47%	2.19	30%	4.21	56%
10	0	0%	0	0%	2.78	39%	1.13	15%	1.28	32%
11	3.71	57%	0.43	6%	2.73	38%	1.3	16%	5.34	74%
12	4.32	57%	0.61	8%	3.23	44%	2.68	35%	5.89	100%
13	1.74	28%	0.54	7%	1.85	28%	1.66	22%	7.51	100%

Table 4. 2. Fixation Time of AOI from each picture

14	1.7	24%	1.74	23%	2.68	40%	0.84	11%	7.27	97%
15	2.41	40%	1.4	19%	6.47	51%	1.87	25%	2.32	36%
16	4.64	67%	2.99	49%	5.71	76%	1.88	25%	6.84	91%
17	4.18	67%	1.6	24%	1.87	25%	0.25	4%	4.46	66%
18	6.06	81%	2.47	33%	4.07	55%	2.39	32%	7.5	100%
19	2.64	38%	2.51	35%	1.17	13%	0.59	9%	4.69	76%
20	2.28	40%	1.84	25%	1.38	18%	1.67	23%	6.54	96%
21	4.61	66%	0.35	5%	0.03	0%	1.4	19%	3.67	50%
22	0.24	10%	0.83	13%	2.62	45%	0.34	5%	3.16	48%
23	2.61	57%	0	0%	0.29	9%	1.63	22%	4.75	64%
24	3.33	58%	0.14	2%	4.07	56%	0.19	3%	3.33	78%
25	1.44	48%	1.21	17%	2.89	39%	0.59	9%	6.26	82%
26	3.29	45%	4.21	56%	2.09	29%	0	0	2.15	95%
27	0.12	10%	0.41	6%	1.51	68%	0.65	14%	5.64	79%
28	0.64	30%	2.15	30%	1.86	24%	1.14	17%	4.76	63%
29	0.48	8%	0.02	0%	0.99	18%	2.63	38%	3.53	63%
30	5.1	73%	0.33	6%	5.41	73%	0.94	12%	7.08	94%
31	5.08	70%	0.36	4%	3.9	54%	0.15	2%	5.41	82%
32	1.32	20%	0.58	8%	2.95	39%	1.45	25%	2.4	50%
33	2.21	31%	0.85	12%	1.66	23%	0.54	8%	3.56	56%
34	0.24	2.4%	1.89	18.9%	0.14	1.4%	0.97	0.97%	5.33	0.533

4.1.3 Normality Test


Test of Normality				
	Kolmogorov-Smirnov			
	Statistic	df	Sig.	
Picture_A	.082	30	.200	
Picture_B	.132	30	.192	
Picture_C	.127	30	.200	
Picture_D	.123	30	.200	
Picture_E	.117	30	.200	

 Table 4. 3 Normality Test Result

There are 34 data of fixation time to the AOI which already been processed by Normality test in SPSS. There are two hypotheses in the Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test which are:

H₀: The distribution of sample data follows the normal distribution

H₁: The distribution of sample data does not follow the normal distribution

The result of Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test for picture A is 0.200, which means H_0 is accepted. The fixation time for picture A follows the normal distribution. The result of Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test for picture B is 0.192, which means H_0 is accepted. The fixation time for picture B follows the normal distribution. The result of Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test for picture C is 0.200, which means H_0 is accepted. The fixation time for picture C follows the normal distribution. The result of Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test for picture D is 0.200, which means H_0 is accepted. The fixation time for picture D follows the normal distribution. The result of Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test for picture D is 0.200, which means H_0 is accepted. The fixation time for picture D follows the normal distribution. The result of Kolmogorov-Smirnov Normality Test for picture E is 0.200, which means H_0 is accepted. The fixation time for picture E has been already normally distributed.

4.1.4 ANOVA test

Thirty data are tested by ANOVA to find whether the average fixation time of each picture has differences, 30. ANOVA test is conducted by SPSS. Time 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 indicate Picture A, Picture B, Picture C, Picture D, and Picture E sequentially. Table 4.4 shows the result of the descriptive data of each five figures. Table 4.5 shows the ANOVA result of the data.

Figure	Ν	Mean
1	30	2.6700
2	30	1.2277
3	30	2.6530
4	30	1.1043
50	30	5.0860
Total	150	2.5482

Table 4. 4 Descriptive Data Result

Table 4. 5 ANOVA Result

Figure	Sig.
Between Groups	.000
Within Groups	and have
Total	

From the normality test, it is known that all the respondents' data are normally distributed. Due to the result of the normality test, ANOVA One Way Test is used. There are two hypotheses in ANOVA One Way Test, which are:

H₀: There is a difference between sample data

H₁: There is no difference between sample data

The result of ANOVA One Way Test is 0.000. So, H_0 is accepted, which means there is a difference between sample data.

In the ANOVA result, there is a mean of each picture fixation time. It indicates the average of fixation time of each picture. For picture A, the average fixation time of the AOI is 2.67 seconds. For picture B, the average fixation time of the AOI is 1.23 seconds. For picture C, the average fixation time of the AOI is 2.65 seconds. For picture D, the average fixation time of the AOI is 1.1 seconds. And the last for picture E, the average fixation time of the AOI is 5.08 seconds. From the average, the highest fixation time to the lowest fixation time, which indicates the most to the lowest interest is picture E, picture A, picture C, picture D, and picture B respectively. So, the highest average fixation time is picture E.

4.1.5 Heat map

From RealEye.io, not only fixation time can be collected, but also heat map from each picture can be collected. Those heat maps that will be discussed represent the fixation from 34 respondents.



Figure 4. 12 Heat map of Picture A

The heat map of picture A is shown in figure 4.15. The criteria for picture A are 'There are texts and the product in big size'. It can be seen the red spot spread around the bottle

rather than around the text. The red spot almost follows the shape of the bottle. The red spot indicates the bottle is considered as the most interesting object for respondents.

The heat map of picture B is provided in figure 4.16. The criteria for picture B are 'there is Pocari Sweat around several goods'. In picture B, there are several goods in one picture. But, the AOI is Pocari Sweat. The red spot spread on the Pocari Sweat, which means in this picture, the AOI attracts the respondent. The red spot not only spread on the Pocari Sweat, but also to the other goods, such as phone, camera, notebook, and bag.



Figure 4. 13 Heat map of Picture B

Figure 4. 17 shows the heat map of Picture C. This picture's criteria is 'There are more than one product of Pocari Sweat'. Indeed, the Picture C describes, there is more than one product of Pocari Sweat. It can be seen; almost all the bottles got a red spot. It means all bottle of Pocari Sweat got high interest from the respondent. But, the red spot not only spread to the bottle. It is also covered up the text and some stuffs.



Figure 4. 14 Heat map of Picture C

The heat map of picture D is provided in figure 4.18. The criteria of this advertisement is 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side'. It can be seen the red spot spread on Pocari Sweat. The red fixation not only spread on Pocari Sweat but also on the goods beside the Pocari Sweat. Also, it can be seen the red spot wider than on the AOI.



Figure 4. 15 Heat map of Picture D

The heat map of picture E is shown in figure 4.19. The criteria of this advertisement is 'Pocari Sweat dominate in this picture'. It can be seen in the picture, the red spot spread around Pocari Sweat. The area of red fixation is wide and every inched of the product in the area. So, it indicates the AOI has high interests.



Figure 4. 16 Heat map of Picture E

From all heat map pictures, it can be seen that the AOI in the advertisement got the red spot. It means that there is high interest in the AOI for all advertisements. For the advertisement with Pocari Sweat and other goods in one picture, the red spot not only spread to the AOI but also to the goods. It will not impact the level of interest, but the average fixation time.



CHAPTER V

RESULT AND DISCUSSION

5.1 Analysis of Criteria

In this section, it will be discussed the reason of criteria determination for each picture made by the researcher. There are several aspects in the picture which are neglected and considered, which will be explained below.



5.1.1 Analysis of Picture A's Criteria

The criteriona of picture A is 'There are texts and the product in big size'. It can be seen that figure 5.1, which shows Picture A, consists of text said 'WISH YOU A VERY MERRY CHRISMAS', three bottles of Pocari Sweat, and action figures. The two bottles behind in a blurry image. Also, the action figures are similar to model usage. As it already explained previously, the use of model will gain many interests. So, the blurry two bottles and text are neglected. Picture A discuss only one bottle on the front and the text. In this picture, the researcher wants to calculate how long the average fixation time for Pocari Sweat with the existence of text and to know people's preferences towards the text or bottle.



Figure 5. 1 Picture A Source: @pocariid (Instagram account)

5.1.2 Analysis of Picture B's Criteria

The criterion of picture B is 'There is Pocari Sweat around several goods'. Figure 5.2 represents Picture B, it shows Pocari Sweat is around several goods. In this Picture B, researcher focuses on all the things in this picture, such as Pocari Sweat, earphone, handphone, camera, and bag. This picture can be considered as a complex layout because of the many features in one picture. In this Picture B, the researcher intends to know how long the average fixation time of Pocari Sweat in a complex layout. Also, the researcher wants to know how people interest to the Pocari Sweat if there are any other goods.



Figure 5. 2 Picture B

Source: @pocariid (Instagram account)

5.1.3 Analysis of Picture C's Criteria

The criterion of picture C is 'There is more than one product of Pocari Sweat'. It can be seen that there are 12 bottles. Also, there are texts and claw machine. The text and claw machine are neglected because in this picture, the bottles of Pocari Sweat becomes the focused object. The researcher wants to know whether the condition influences average of fixation time, if the number of Pocari Sweat more than one.



5.1.4 Analysis of Picture D's Criteria

The criterion of picture D is 'There are Pocari Sweat and good side by side'. Figure 5.4 represents picture D which shows that there are Pocari Sweat and King of Hammer Game Machine. This game machine more colorful than the Pocari Sweat. But, in this research, it will be focused on the position of Pocari Sweat and the good, in this case the game machine. It will be analyzed the average fixation time of Pocari Sweat, if there is another good is placed besides the Pocari Sweat.



Source: @pocariid (Instagram account)

5.1.5 Analysis of Picture E's Criteria

Figure 5.5 shows the picture E, in which the criterion is "Pocari Sweat dominate in the picture". Picture E is considered a simple picture because in this advertisement, the object only involves the Pocari Sweat bottle. Pocari Sweat in the big size and dominates the area of the picture. It can be seen that the background is designed with less elements, and make the background not considered as complex. In this advertisement, the researcher desires to know how the average fixation time of people when only see one big object with a simple background.



rigure 5. 5 ricture E

Source: @pocariid (Instagram account)

5.2 Analysis of Interesting Pocari Sweat Advertisement Level

In this part, the people's interest to each picture will be analyzed. It is conducted in order to identify the correlation of several aspects to the AOI in each advertisement by considering the average fixation time and heat map. Also, it will be discussed the most interesting picture over others.

5.2.1 Analysis of the Fifth Most Interested Advertisement

Figure 5.6 on the left side shows the original picture D without heat map. The fifth most interested or the lowest interesting picture is picture D. The criteria of picture D is 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side'. The result of Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov is 0.200. The result is more than 0.05, so H_0 is accepted. It means that the result is normal. Then, the data is tested by ANOVA One-Way Test. The average of fixation time is 1.1 s, the result makes this picture has the lowest interest.

This result is caused by the existence of another good besides Pocari Sweat. So, respondent sees Pocari Sweat for a while and their gazes diverted to the goods besides Pocari Sweat. It is seen that the good besides the Pocari Sweat has a bigger size and more colorful than Pocari Sweat. From heat map in figure 5.6 on the right side, it is shown that the Pocari Sweat is covered with the red spot, but the good besides the Pocari Sweat is also covered with the red spot. The good has red spot in wider area than a red spot on the Pocari Sweat.



Figure 5. 6 Original Picture D (Left) and Heat Map Picture D (Right)

Also, the result indicates that respondent finds the good beside the bottle is more interesting than the Pocari Sweat.

5.2.2 Analysis of the Fourth Most Interesting Picture

The second-lowest picture is picture B. Picture B is shown in figure 5.7 on the left side. The criteria of picture B is 'There is Pocari Sweat around several goods'. The result of Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov is 0.192. The result is more than 0.05, so H_0 is accepted. It means that the result is normal. Then, the data is tested by ANOVA One-Way Test. The average of fixation time is 1.2 s, this result made this picture to be the second-lowest interesting.

Basically, the difference number of fixation time from picture B and picture D is not too big with only 0.1 s. Also, it almost has same criteria with picture 1, there is a good around the Pocari Sweat. The difference only in the amount and size of good. In picture B, more than one good are placed around Pocari Sweat but in small size. Respondent sees Pocari Sweat for a while and their gazes diverted to the goods around of Pocari Sweat. From a heat map of picture B, which is shown in figure 5.7, it is known that the Pocari Sweat got the red spot. But the red spot is spread to several goods also. So, the fixation time is spent not only to the Pocari Sweat, but also for the goods around the Pocari Sweat. From 5.1.2, it is already mentioned that this advertisement has complexity. This complexity can affect the average fixation time. This statement is proved by Pileliene & Grigaliunaite (2016), it could be stated that when the aim of marketing communication is to enhance brand awareness or to form an attitude toward the brand, the lowest level of advertising layout complexity is appropriate to reach the aim of marketing communication.



Figure 5. 7 Original Picture B (Left) and Heat Map Picture B (Right)

5.2.3 Analysis of the Third Most Interested Picture

The third lowest picture is picture C which is shown in figure 5.8 on the left side. The criteria of picture C is 'There is more than one product of Pocari Sweat'. The result of Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov is 0.200. The result is more than 0.05, so H_0 is accepted. It means that the result is normal. Then, the data is tested by ANOVA One-Way Test. The average of fixation time is 2.65 s, this result made this picture to be the third-lowest interesting.

In this advertisement, there are more than one Pocari Sweat or 12 bottles to be exact. This advertisement is the third lowest or highest interesting. From a heat map on figure 5.8 on the right side, it can be seen that not all the bottles get the red spot or get a high interest of attention. It can be analyzed that the people get bored to see only Pocari Sweat, and without further consideration, people knew that the picture on the right side is Pocari Sweat.



Figure 5. 8 Original Picture B (Left) and Heat Map Picture B (Right)

5.2.4 Analysis of the Second Most Interested Picture

The second most interested picture is picture D which is shown in figure 5.9 on the left side. The criteria of picture D is 'There are text and the product in big size'. The result of Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov is 0.200. The result > 0.05, so H_0 is accepted. It means that the result is normal. Then, the data is tested by ANOVA One-Way Test. The average of fixation time is 2.67 s, this result made this picture to be the fourth-lowest interesting or second-highest interesting.

It can be seen in picture D, there is text and Pocari Sweat with the big size and dominates the area of the picture. From a heat map of figure 5.9 on the right side, the red spot gathers around the bottle and less spot around the text. Sometimes, people distracted with the text, it can be based on the region. It is supported by previous research from Tayebi (2010), the consumer in Sweden find the text concept not very effective in attracting, but the Iranian consumers find it more effective to see the advertisement with the text. But the Pocari Sweat can distract the attention due to its big size. Based on Tayebi (2010), a big image has a stronger effect on customer's interest instead of smaller image size.



Figure 5. 9 Original Picture D (Left) and Heat Map Picture D (Right)

5.2.5 Analysis of The Most Interested Picture

The most interesting picture is Picture E which is shown in Figure 5.10. There are 30 data of the respondent's average fixation time which is normally distributed. It is known from Normality Test-Kolmogorov Smirnov, all the data is above 0.05. Because the data already normalized, the data is tested by ANOVA-One Way Test. The result of ANOVA-One Way Test is 0.000, it is above 0.05. It means there is a difference between sample data. ANOVA One-Way Test creates the descriptive value also. From the highest average of fixation time, it is identified that the picture E nominated as the most interesting image with 5.08 seconds. The criterion of this picture is 'Pocari Sweat dominate in the picture'.

It is supported by the heat map of picture E. It is shown in figure 5.10 on the right side, the red spot fulfils the AOI. It means that people see every single part of the Pocari Sweat in the advertisement. This advertisement has the highest average fixation time, it indicates that the Pocari Sweat has the most attention in this picture. It can be seen there is only one object in this figure which is Pocari Sweat. Then, this Pocari Sweat in a big size. It is already analyzed in picture A, the Pocari Sweat in big size makes people interested in the product. Similar with Tayebi, Lee & Ahn (2012) also confirmed that the size of an element is among the attention-grabbing tool to capture consumers' attention. Also, it can be seen

there is only one object in this figure which is Pocari Sweat itself. So, people give more attention to the Pocari Sweat and cannot be distracted because there is no other object that emerges as a distraction. As mentioned by Pieters, Wedel, & Batra (2010), images with high complexity in features would have a negative impact on consumers' attention.



Figure 5. 10 Original Picture E (Left) and Heat Map Picture E (Right)



CHAPTER VI

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

6.1 Conclusion

6.1.1 The Criteria of Each Pocari Sweat Advertisement

In this research, there are five advertisements of Pocari Sweat used, and it adopts from Pocari Sweat's Instagram. Researcher labels the advertisement with Picture A, B, C, D, E with their own criteria as below,

1. Picture A

Picture A is shown in figure 5.1 with criteria of 'There are text and product in big size'.

2. Picture B

Figure 6.2 presents the Picture B with its criteria of 'There is Pocari Sweat around several goods'.

3. Picture C

Picture C appears on Figure 6.3. The criterion of Picture C is 'There is more than one product of Pocari Sweat'.

4. Picture D

Picture D is showed in Figure 6.4. The criterion of Picture D is 'There are Pocari Sweat and goods side by side'.

5. Picture E

Picture E is presented in Figure 6.5. The criterion of Picture E is 'Pocari Sweat dominates the picture.'

6.1.2 The Most Interesting Pocari Sweat Advertisement

From five pictures of Pocari Sweat Advertisement, picture E is concluded as the most interesting picture. Picture E is shown in figure 6.5. The criterion of Picture E is 'Pocari Sweat dominates in the picture'. The average fixation time is 5.08 seconds and the AOI get the red spot which covers it entirely.

The size of Pocari Sweat and complexity of background influences the results. Tayebi also said from Lee & Ahn (2012), the size of an element is among the attention-grabbing tool to capture consumers attention. The utilization of large size image may result in an effective way in getting consumers' attention. Also, it can be seen there is only one object in this figure which is Pocari Sweat itself. So, people give more attention to the Pocari Sweat only which cannot be distracted since there is no object available as a cause of distraction. As mentioned by Pieters, Wedel, & Batra (2010), images with high complexity in features would have a negative impact to consumers' attention.

6.2 Recommendation

It is suggested for further research the eye-tracking experiment that can be conducted by offline, which indicates the utilization of physical tools, not an online tool. So, the result will be more accurate. The research can be conducted not only for the static image but also can be applied to the dynamic image.

REFERENCES

- Aaker D. A. 1991. Managing brand equity: Capitalizing on the value of brand name. New York.
- Aaker, D.A. 1996. Measuring Brand Equity Across Products and Markets. California Management Review, 38(3).
- Belch G.E, Belch M.A. 2004. Advertising and promotion: An integrated marketing communications perspective. New York: NY: McGraw-Hill.
- Bergstrom, T. & Backman, L. 2013. How the utilization of Instagram builds and maintains customer relationships. *Marketing and PR in social media*. Retrieved from http://urn.kb.se/resolve?urn=urn:nbn:se:su:diva-90410
- Bevins, C. 2014. Get schooled: A visual social semiotic analysis of target's branding using Instagram. *Masters Theses.* Paper 327. Retrieved from http://digitalcommons.liberty.edu/masters/327/
- Chandon, P., Hutchinson, J. W., Bradlow, E. T. and Young, S. H. 2009. Does in-store marketing work? Effects of the number and position of shelf facings on brand attention and evaluation at the point of purchase. *Journal of Marketing*, 73, pp. 1-17.
- Clement, J. 2020, February 14. Countries with most Instagram users 2020. Retrieved from https://www.statista.com/statistics/578364/countries-with-most-instagram-users/
- Daniel, W.W. 1989. Statistika Nonparametrik Terapan. Alih bahasa : Alex Tri K.W. Jakarta. PT Gramedia
- Daniel, W. W. 1990. Applied Nonparametric Statistics. Boston Mass: PWS-Kent.
- Dennis, D. 2014, April 16. Successfully social: A non-profit's guide to modern social media marketing. Senior Honor Theses. Paper 454. Retrieved from http://digitalcommons.liberty.edu/honors/454/

- Djamasbi, S., Siegel, M., & Tullis, T. 2010. Generation Y, web design, and eye tracking. *International Journal of Human-Computer Studies*, 68(5), 307-323.
- Dubovik, O. 2013. Instagram as instrument of marketing. *Majesty of marketing*, 39. Retrieved from

http://mk.nmu.org.ua/ua/npd/majesty2013/majesty2013.pdf#page=39

- Domazet, I., Đokić, I. & Milovanov, O. 2017. The Influence of advertising media on brand awareness. Management: Journal of Sustainable Business and Management Solutions in Emerging Economies. 23. 13. 10.7595/management.fon.2017.0022.
- Duchowski, A. 2007. Eye tracking methodology: Theory and practice. Springer, Berlin Heidelberg.
- Gaffron M, 1950 ``Left and right in pictures" Art Quarterly. 13. 312-331
- Gaze Plot Eye Tracking What is Gaze Plot Eye Tracking? (n.d.). Retrieved from https://sightcorp.com/knowledge-base/gaze-plot-eye-tracking/
- Gustafson, T., Chabot, B. 2007. Brand Awareness. Cornell Maple Bulletin 105.Available at: http://www.nnyagdev.org/maplefactsheets/CMB%20105%20Brand%20Awareness. pdf. Accessed: 16 May 2011.
- Hidayat, A. 2017. Tutorial Cara Uji Wilcoxon Signed Rank Test. Retrieved by Statistikian: https://www.statistikian.com/2014/07/tutorial-ujiwilcoxon-signed-rank-test.html/amp
- Hird, C. 2013. Social media marketing: A best practices analysis of selected destination magazines. Retrieved from http://digitalcommons.calpoly.edu/rptasp/54/
- Holmqvist, K., Nyström, M., Andersson, R., Dewhurst, R., Jarodzka, H., & Van de Weijer,J. 2011. Eye tracking: A comprehensive guide to methods and measures. Oxford University: Press.

- ISO 9241-210 2010. Ergonomic of human-system interaction Part 210: Human-centered design for interactive system. International Organization for Standardization, Geneva, Switzerland.
- ISI IEC 25010. 2011. Systems and software engineering System and software Quality Requirements and Evaluation (SQuaRE) – System and software quality models. International Organization for Standarization, Geneva, Switzerland
- ISO. IEC 9126. 2001.. Software engineering Product quality. International Organization for Standarization, Geneva Switzerland
- Nielsen, J., & Loranger, H. 2006. Prioritizing Web Usability. Berkley, USA: New Riders.
- Kapferer JN. 1997. Strategic brand management: creating and sustaining brand equity long term, 2. Auflage, London.
- Kim, G. J. 2014. Human Computer Interaction. United Kingdom: Taylor & Francis.
- Lee, J., & Ahn, J.-H. (2012). Attention to Banner Ads and Their Effectiveness: An Eye-Tracking Approach. International Journal of Electronic Commerce, 17(1), 119–137. doi:10.2753/JEC1086-4415170105
- Levy M, Weitz BA, Grewal D. 2012. Retailing management. New York: McGraw-Hill/Irwin.
- Kuniavsky, J. 2003. *Observing the User Experience: A Practitioner's Guide to User Researc.* San Fransisco, USA: Morgan Kaufmann.
- Linaschke, J. 2011. *Getting the most from Instagram*. Retrieved from http://books.google.com.my/books?hl=en&lr=&id=zI3Km4v6kqQC&oi=fnd&pg= PT2&dq=instagram&ots=pWGgqHoZ1o&sig=kZ4T9ChEs1OhU849dD1abNu3et Y#v=onepage&q=instagram&f=false
- Ngurah, A. I. G. 2006. Statistika Penerapan Model Rerata Sel Multivariat dan Model Ekonometri dengan SPSS. Jakarta: Yayasan SAD Satria Bhakti
- Nistoreanu, Puiu & Pelau, Corina & Lazar, Laura. 2019. Product versus Celebrity An eyetracking experiment for the determination of the attention-catcher in advertising.

Proceedings of the International Conference on Business Excellence. 13. 1079-1086. 10.2478/picbe-2019-0094.

Nizamuddin. (n.d). Advertising and Sales Promotion. India: Pondicherry University

- Pasha, S. H. A., & Masoom, M. R. 2013. Top of The Mind Awareness (Toma) of A Particular Brand As Leading Consideration of Purchasing The Product An Empirical Assessment. JIMS8M: The Journal of Indian Management & Strategy. 18. 13-20.
- Pieters, R., Wedel, M., & Batra, R. (2010). The Stopping Power of Advertising Measures and Effects of Visual Complexity. Journal of Marketing, 74(September), 48–60.
- Pileliene, L. & Grigaliunaite V. 2010. Effect of Visual Advertising Complexity on Consumers' Attention. International Journal of Management, Accounting and Economics. 3
- Poole, A., & Ball, L. J. (2006). Eye tracking in human-computer interaction and usability research: Current status and future prospects. In C. Ghaoui (Ed.), *Encyclopedia of human computer interaction*, 211–219. Pennsylvania, PA: Idea Group.
- Pretorius, M., Calitz, A.P. 2011. The Contribution of Eye Tracking to Brand Awareness Studies, In Fifth International Business Conference. Turtle Bay, Mauritius.
- Puškarević, Irma & Nedeljković, Uroš & Dimovski, Vladimir & Možina, Klementina. 2016. An eye tracking study of attention to print advertisements: Effects of typeface figuration. Journal of Eye Movement Research. 9. 10.16910/jemr.9.5.6.
- Roto, V., Law, E., Vemeeren, A., & Hoonhout, J. 2011. User Experience White Paper, Bringing Clarity to the Concept of User Experience. Retrieved August 20, 2014, from http://www.allaboutux.org/uxwhitepaper
- Rusu, C., Roncangliolio, S., Rusu, V., & Collazos, C. (2011). A Methodology to Establish Usability Heuristics. In Proceeding ACHI2011: *The Fourth International Conference on Advances in Computer Human Interaction* (pp. 59-62). International Academy, Research, and Industry Association (IARIA).
- Santoso, S. 2001. Statistik Non Parametrik. Jakarta: PT Elex Media Komputindo.

- Saravanakumar, M. & Lakshmi, T.S. 2012. Social media marketing. Life science journal, 9(4). Retrieved from http://dems.unimib.it/corsi/817/esercitazioni/social_media_mktg.pdf
- Schulte-Mecklenbeck, M., Fiedler, S., Renkewitz, F., & Orquin, J.L. 2015. A review and guideline for the reporting of behavioral eye-tracking studies. Unpublished dataset.Berlin: Max Planck Institute for Human Development.
- Sharp, H., Rogers, Y., & Preece, J. 2007. Interaction Design: Beyond Human Computer Interaction. Chichester, England: John Wiley & Sons.
- Siegel, Sidney. 1997. Statistik Nonparametrik Untuk Ilmu-ilmu Sosial. Jakarta: Penerbit PT Gramedia Pustaka Utama
- Silva, T.H. & de Melo, P.O.S.V. & Almeida, J.M. & Salles, J. & Loureiro, A.A.F. 2013, May. A picture of Instagram is worth more than a thousand words: workload characterization and application. doi:10.1109/DCOSS.2013.59
- Standar Nasional Indonesia. Minumam Isotonik. SNI 01-4452-1998.
- Tan, D. 2010. Success Factors In Establishing Your Brand. Franchising and Licensing Association. Available from http://www.flasingapore.org/info_branding.php. Accessed: 10 May 2011.
- Tayebi, S. S. (2010). The effectiveness of design elements like picture , text and color in aesthetic products advertisement. Jonkoping University.
- Usability.gov. 2014.. Improving the User Experience. U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Retrieved April 24, 2020 from http://www.usability.gov/
- UXPA.org. 2014. User Experience Professionals Association. Retrieved April 24, 2020. From http://uxpa.org/
- Wackerley, D.D., Mendenhall, W., Scheaffer, R. L., (2008), Mathematical statistics with applications, Thompson Brooks/Cole, USA. Dalam: Fajrin, J., Zhuge, Y., Bullen, F., Wang, H., Flexural strength of sandwich panel with lignocellulosic composites intermediate layer-a statistic approach, International Journal of

Protective 2 Structures (2011),p. 452-464. (PDF) APLIKASI METODE ANALYSIS OF VARIANCE (ANOVA) UNTUK MENGKAJI PENGARUH PENAMBAHAN SILICA FUME TERHADAP SIFAT FISIK DAN **MEKANIK** MORTAR. Available from: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/306112224_APLIKASI_METODE_AN ALYSIS_OF_VARIANCE_ANOVA_UNTUK_MENGKAJI_PENGARUH_PEN AMBAHAN SILICA FUME TERHADAP SIFAT FISIK DAN MEKANIK MORTAR [accessed Aug 28 2020].

- Wiberg, C. Jegers, K., & Desurvire, H. 2009. How Applicable is your evaluation methods Really? In Proceedings ACHI 2009: *The Second International Conference on Advances in Computer-Human Interactions(pp.324-328).* IEEE Computer Society Press.
- Widiyanto, M.A. (2013). Statistika Terapan, Konsep dan Aplikasi SPSS/Lisrel dalam Penelitian Pendidikan, Psikologi dan Ilmu Sosial Lainya.Jakarta : PT Elex Media Komputindo.
- Working with Heat Maps and Gaze Plots. 2015. Retrieved from https://www.tobiipro.com/learn-and-support/learn/steps-in-an-eye-trackingstudy/interpret/working-with-heat-maps-and-gaze-plots/
- Yim K. H., Nahm F.S., Han K.A., Park S.Y. 2010. Analysis of statistical methods and errors in the articles published in the korean journal of pain. Korean J Pain 2010; 23: 35-41
- Zamani, H. Abas, A., & Amin M. K. M. 2016. Eye Tracking Application on Emotion Analysis for Marketing Strategy. Journal of Telecommunication, Electronic and Computer Engineering. Vol. 8 No. 11

ATTACHMENT































